


MCOG Board of Directors Agenda 
August 19, 2019, Page 2 of 2 

9. Approval of June 3, 2019 Minutes 
10. Approval of May 2 and May 21, 2019 Transit Productivity Committee (TPC) Minutes 
11. Approval of First Amendment to Fiscal Year 2019/20 Transportation Planning Overall Work 

Program (OWP) 
12. Approval of Minor Amount ($527) of Funding Share by Formula for Statewide Local Streets & 

Roads Needs Assessment 
 

RATIFY ACTION 
13. Recess as Policy Advisory Committee – Reconvene as RTPA – Ratify Action of Policy Advisory 

Committee 
 

REPORTS 
14. Reports – Information 

a. Mendocino Transit Authority 
b. North Coast Railroad Authority 
c. MCOG Staff - Summary of Meetings 
d. MCOG Administration Staff 

1. Upcoming Grant Program for Housing Related Planning – California Department of 
Housing & Community Development 

2. Miscellaneous 
e. MCOG Planning Staff 
f. MCOG Directors 
g. California Association of Councils of Governments (CALCOG) Delegates 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
15. Adjourn 
 
 
 
AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT (ADA) REQUESTS 
To request disability-related modifications or accommodations for accessible locations or meeting materials in 
alternative formats (as allowed under Section 12132 of the ADA) please contact the MCOG office at (707) 463-1859, 
at least 72 hours before the meeting. 
 

ADDITIONS TO AGENDA 
The Brown Act, Section 54954.2, states that the Board may take action on off-agenda items when: 
a) a majority vote determines that an “emergency situation” exists as defined in Section 54956.5, or 
b) a two-thirds vote of the body, or a unanimous vote of those present, determines that there is a need to take 

immediate action and the need for action arose after the agenda was legally posted, or 
c) the item was continued from a prior, legally posted meeting not more than five calendar days before this meeting. 
 

CLOSED SESSION 
If agendized, MCOG may adjourn to a closed session to consider litigation or personnel matters (i.e. contractor 
agreements).  Discussion of litigation or pending litigation may be held in closed session by authority of Govt. Code 
Section 54956.9; discussion of personnel matters by authority of Govt. Code Section 54957. 
 
POSTED 8/13/2019      * Next Resolution Number:  M2019-08
 













































































MCOG Board of Directors Minutes        June 3, 2019, Page 4 
 

Total LTF  721,673 
Regional Surface Trans. Program – Admin.   90,000 
ATP Infrastructure Grants – Admin.  200,000 
PPM Funds - Planning   166,361 
RPA Funds - Planning   294,000 
Sustainable Communities Planning Grant  119,516 
Climate Adaptation Planning Grant  248,769 

Total Allocations   1,840,319 
 

b. Adoption of Resolution Finding That There Are Unmet Transit Needs That Are Reasonable 
To Meet for Fiscal Year 2019/20. 

Resolution No. M2019-03 
Finding That There Are Unmet Transit Needs 

That Are Reasonable To Meet for Fiscal Year 2019/20 
(Reso. #M2019-03 is incorporated herein by reference) 

 

c. Adoption of Resolution Allocating Fiscal Year 2019/20 Local Transportation Funds, State 
Transit Assistance, and FY 2018/19 Carryover Capital Reserve Funds to Mendocino Transit 
Authority. 

Resolution No. M2019-04 
Allocating Fiscal Year 2019/20 LTF, STA, and 2018/19 Carryover 

Capital Reserve Funds to Mendocino Transit Authority 
(Reso. #M2019-04 is incorporated herein by reference) 

 

Local Transportation Fund (LTF)   
MTA Operations 2,993,124  
Unmet Transit Needs 0  
Senior Center Operations 555,499  
Capital Reserve Fund 0  

Total LTF  3,548,623 
State Transit Assistance (STA)   

MTA Operations 946,179  
MTA & Senior Center Capital 0  
Capital Reserve Fund 0  

Total STA  946,179 
Capital Reserve Program   

Current Year - MTA 0  
Current Year – Senior Centers 0  
Long Term – MTA and Seniors 674,846  

Total Capital Reserve  674,846 
Total Transit Allocations  5,169,648 

 

d. Adoption of Resolution Allocating Regional Surface Transportation Program Funds for 
Fiscal Year 2019/20 MCOG Partnership Funding Program, Local Assistance, and 
Distribution By Formula To Member Agencies. 

Resolution No. M2019-05 
Allocating RSTP Funds for Fiscal Year 2019/20 MCOG Partnership Funding 

Program, Local Assistance, and Distribution by Formula To Member Agencies 
(Reso. #M2019-05 is incorporated herein by reference) 

 

MCOG Partnership Funding Program  100,000 
Local Assistance – Project Delivery  90,000 
Formula Distribution to Members   



MCOG Board of Directors Minutes        June 3, 2019, Page 5 
 

Mendocino County DOT 127,229  
City of Ukiah 171,222  
City of Fort Bragg 114,321  
City of Willits 107,301  
City of Point Arena 70,919  

Total Formula Distributions  590,992 
Total RSTP Allocations  780,992 

 
9.  Transit Productivity Committee Recommendation of May 2, 2019: Approval of Resolution 
Adopting a Farebox Standard of Ten Percent Consistent With the Minimum State 
Requirement for Non-Urban Transit Operators. Ms. Orth referred to her written staff report. 

Upon motion by Haschak, second by Carter, and carried unanimously on roll call vote (7 
Ayes –Stranske, Brown, Carter/Alt.,Haschak, Ignacio/Alt., Jackman/PAC, and Gjerde; 0 Noes; 0 
Abstaining; 1 Absent); IT IS ORDERED that the Transit Productivity Committee’s recommendation 
to update MCOG’s transit performance standard for Farebox Ratio to 10% (ten percent), consistent 
with the state’s minimum requirement, is approved by resolution. 
 

Resolution No. M2019-06 
Adopting a Farebox Standard of Ten Percent 

Consistent With the Minimum State Requirement 
for Non-Urban Transit Operators  

(Reso. #M2019-06 is incorporated herein by reference) 
 

10-12. Consent Calendar. Upon motion by Carter, second by Stranske, and carried unanimously on 
roll call vote (7 Ayes – Stranske, Brown, Carter, Haschak, Ignacio/Alt., Jackman/PAC, and Gjerde; 
0 Noes; 0 Abstaining; 1 Absent): IT IS ORDERED that consent items are approved: 
 

10.  Approval of May 6, 2019 Minutes – as written 
 

11.  Adoption of Resolution Approving the Programming of FTA Section 5311(f) Intercity Bus 
Program Funds for Mendocino Transit Authority’s Project Proposal: Continuation of Route 
65 Service 

Resolution No. M2019-07 
Approving the Programming of FTA Section 5311(f) 

Intercity Bus Program Funds for Mendocino Transit Authority’s 
Project Proposal: Continuation of Route 65 Service  

(Reso. #M2019-07 is incorporated herein by reference) 
 

12.  Appointments to Social Services Transportation Advisory Council (SSTAC) 
 Jill Rexrode, Redwood Coast Seniors, as “Local social service provider for seniors that 

provides transportation” 
 Laurie Hill, Redwood Coast Seniors, as Alternate 

 
13.  Recess as Policy Advisory Committee - Reconvene as RTPA - Ratify Action of Policy 
Advisory Committee. Upon motion by Carter, second by Haschak, and carried unanimously (6 
Ayes; 0 Noes; 0 Abstaining; 1 Absent): IT IS ORDERED that the actions taken by the Policy 
Advisory Committee are ratified by the MCOG Board of Directors. 
 
14.  Reports - Information 

a. Mendocino Transit Authority. Ms. Ellard reported the May meeting was cancelled. 
 

b. North Coast Railroad Authority. There was no report. 
 







MCOG Transit Productivity Committee        Page 2 of 4 
May 2, 2019 Minutes 
 

Discussion included: 
 What are Long Distance Bus Routes? MTA’s footnote lists “60 Coaster, 65/66 CC Rider, 75 Gualala/ 

Ukiah, 95 Point Arena/Santa Rosa.” Review of these routes. (All) 
 Why is Route 20 Willits/Ukiah called Short Distance? This route includes local Willits service as 

well as to-from Ukiah. Many school children used to ride to Ukiah, no longer the case. Perhaps 
school districts can explain. Would results change if #20 were moved to Long Distance? Data should 
be reported accurately, even if it brings down ridership totals for local services. Consensus to move 
Route 20 to Long Distance Routes; assuming this can be done internally without Board approval, 
agreed to start in July 2019. (Carla, Jim, Nephele, Janet, group) 

 Farebox dropped significantly for Seniors in the most recent year of review. Passengers per Hour 
remains level. The Centers give out some free fares. How was Passengers/Hour established by MCOG? 
Can it be changed to Passengers per Trip? No, established in Transportation Development Act (TDA), 
also in Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Section 5310 program rules. Discussion of how to address 
Senior Centers farebox drop-off. How are free fares reported—does it reduce Farebox numbers? No, 
does not increase cost. Appears to be in Winter when seniors are not going out as much. Continue to 
watch. (Janet, Nephele, Diana, Carla, group) 

 MCOG and MTA are currently undergoing triennial performance audits, with compliance reviews; 
the independent auditor consultant is an excellent resource for issues like this. Can MCOG reduce the 
standard for passengers/ridership? Staff will research how established and consult with the 
performance auditor, then report back to TPC. (Janet, Nephele) 

 Under the previous (long-time) General Manager, MTA made a conscious effort to move able riders 
from Dial-a-Ride (DAR) to fixed route service, so DAR performance is not ideal. Agreement that 
DAR is not expected to perform well. Also this strategy did not improve fixed route performance. 
Discussion of DAR serving general public or only disabled riders (paratransit); some operators have 
eliminated the public service, MTA has not yet. More people are using rideshare services such as 
Uber and Lyft. (Jim, Janet, Nephele, group) 

 

Recommendation: 
No formal recommendation. Consensus of participants to take the following interim steps: 
 Move Route 20 Willits/Ukiah performance reporting to Long Distance Bus Routes category. (MTA staff) 
 Continue to watch Farebox Ratio performance of Senior Centers. (TPC) 
 Research options for Passengers per Hour standard. (MCOG staff) 

– Annual Transit Performance Reviews (one year and three years) are attached 
 
5. Review and Recommendation on MTA’s Analysis and Prioritization of 2019/20 Unmet Transit Needs. 
Janet explained the process and expressed appreciation for MTA’s Route Committee report, provided in follow-
up to last year’s Unmet Transit Needs finding. Carla reported the committee was delayed by some staff turnover 
and now meeting more often. Pending MTA’s analysis of the 2019/20 list, this agenda item was continued to 
the next meeting. 
 
6. Review and Recommendation on Fiscal Year 2019/20 Transit Claim. Carla handed out a revised 
annual claim and apologized for an error, so that the senior centers will receive the same Local Transportation 
Fund (LTF) increase as MTA does, as is customary. She also reported that MTA employee Dawn White was 
promoted to Mobility Manager. 

Janet reviewed her written staff report, noting estimated revenues are up by an unprecedented rate. 
LTF is up from sales taxes, including prior-year excess, resulting in a 12.5% increase available for MTA. 
State Transit Assistance (STA) is up from Senate Bill 1, the Road Repair & Accountability Act of 2017, 
tripled since 2017. Nephele explained how SB 1 is bringing funds to Mendocino County through several 
programs. Janet reviewed MTA’s claim for Operations and explained the new SB 508 law, which relaxed 
STA qualifying criteria. 

Carla reported how MTA is meeting its retirement liability with other funds than LTF and STA. 
She noted grants for the new Ukiah transit center, a high priority for her, which she believes will increase 
ridership. Location is still under review. MTA is applying for a grant to fund six electric cutaway buses. 





MCOG Transit Productivity Committee        Page 4 of 4 
May 2, 2019 Minutes 
 

 Discussion of history with Indian Senior Center and Long Valley Health Center, from the old 
document, recalling they had dropped out of the program due to reporting requirements. Recently 
there were FTA 5310 grant awards to tribal agencies. Also they have other sources of funds. (Mike, 
Janet, Nephele) 

 Opportunities for FTA 5310 grants, with a new Call for Projects in July. Discussion of specific 
vehicle needs for seniors programs, such as four-wheel drive vans with wheelchair lift, and whether 
these could be procured through the state’s resources or qualify under 5310. Staff agreed to research. 
(Carla, Nephele, Mike) 

 Next steps include 1) request advice from the performance auditor (MCOG staff), 2) find out whether 
the Cities are able to help subsidize the centers (Diana), 3) look at 5310 operating grants (Carla). 

 Carla and Diana volunteered to meet prior to the next TPC meeting to research a revised funding 
formula for the senior centers as a starting point for further discussion. 

After discussion, MCOG’s staff recommendation was approved as follows. 
 

Recommendation: 
Upon motion by Carter, seconded by Brown, and carried unanimously (3 Ayes; 0 Noes; 2 Absent), the TPC 
recommended that MCOG acknowledge the need to revise the long-standing formula for the senior centers’ 
transportation programs from allocations of the Local Transportation Fund, and continue this item to the 
next TPC meeting. 
 
8. Miscellaneous / Members’ Concerns/ Announcements. None. 
 
9. Adjournment. It was agreed to meet again after May 14; Janet will issue a poll for available dates. 
The meeting was adjourned at 12:00 p.m. 
 
 
 
Submitted by Janet Orth, Deputy Director / CFO 



MENDOCINO COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 

MINUTES 
Transit Productivity Committee - TPC 

May 21, 2019 

Dow & Associates Conference Room, Ukiah 

PRESENT: 
MCOG Board Members: Michael Carter and Jim O. Brown 
MTA Board Members: Jim Mastin 
Senior Centers Rep.: Diana Clark and Marilyn DeFrange, Ukiah Senior Center 
Staff: Janet Orth, Nephele Barrett and Marta Ford, MCOG 

Carla Meyer, MTA 
ABSENT: Jim Tarbell, MTA 

1. Call to Order. The meeting was called to order at 10:00 a.m. Self-introductions were made.

2. Public Expression. None.

3. Review and Recommendation on MTA’s Analysis and Prioritization of 2019/20 Unmet Transit Needs
– continued from May 2, 2019. Janet briefly reviewed the annual process, status and adopted definitions.

Carla reviewed status of last year’s seven needs found reasonable to meet, contingent on three factors 
(MTA’s review of existing routes; update of seniors transportation funding formula; potential federal 5311 
grants). Five needs are in various stages of being met, and the other two are not able to be met in the near term. 
In discussion, it was agreed to drop the five of these seven needs that appear on the new list as High Priority, 
since they are already in progress. 

Carla confirmed that any needs not found reasonable to meet in the coming year can still be addressed 
by MTA as opportunities arise from changing conditions. Discussion followed on MTA’s newly funded 
Mobility Management position and potential volunteer driver programs. 

MTA’s analysis of the list of all testimony compiled by MCOG from the Social Services Transportation 
Advisory Council (SSTAC), Mendocino Transit Authority (MTA) and the December public hearing was 
included in the agenda packet. The report was ranked by five categories: Already Exists (1), High Priority–
Consider for FY 2019/20 (8), Medium Priority (3), Low Priority (15), and Not an Unmet Need (0), for a total of 
27 needs. Carla’s review and group discussion included the following (excluding prior-year needs). 

 “Already Exists” – #M-15, service to Eagle Peak school in Redwood Valley as requested by parents
is provided by an MTA stop within three blocks. MTA is prohibited by law from providing school
bus service.

 “High Priority–Consider for FY 2019/20” – MTA’s route committee is addressing issues of these
needs: #M-7, addition of a bus stop on East Gobbi Street in Ukiah to serve a seniors’ mobile home
park is contingent on revisions to MTA’s Dial-A-Ride program (DAR). #M-9, evening transportation
for workers returning from Ukiah to Willits, will not be an expansion of service but could involve a
timing adjustment of Route 20. #M-14, a pulse system at Navarro Junction for buses to Fort Bragg,
Ukiah, and Point Arena, would time buses to meet together for ride transfers.

 “Medium Priority” – #S-9 and PH-2, to increase Ukiah-Hopland service, was tried years ago but
demographics have changed, with more workers in town, so enough riders could now be anticipated.
While Hopland is served by Route 65, this is a grant-funded service with restrictions such as meeting
Greyhound connections in Santa Rosa; also there is no funding available. #M-10, service on Talmage
Road in Ukiah also is constrained by lack of funds, but should be kept in mind for future expansion.
DAR service would be more efficient than fixed route for this need.

 “Low Priority” – Each of these 15 needs were reviewed. Most lacked available funding resources.
Others were logistically impractical (e.g. Golden Rule Park outside Willits has no safe way to drop
off passengers on US-101 northbound). Others were inequitable (e.g. “general public service” by
paratransit DAR is being eliminated; since not offered in Ukiah, should not be offered in Brooktrails).





Page 1 of 2 

MENDOCINO COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 

STAFF REPORT 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
TITLE:   First Amendment to FY 2019/20 Overall Work Program  DATE PREPARED:  8/7/19 

SUBMITTED BY: Loretta Ellard, Deputy Planner MEETING DATE: 8/19/19 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
BACKGROUND:   

The Final FY 2019/20 Overall Work Program (totaling $989,346) was adopted by MCOG on  
June 3, 2019.   Now that the FY 2018/19 books have closed, we need to carry over and reprogram some 
unexpended PPM funds, some of which expire 6/30/20.  Unexpended RPA funds will also need to be carried over 
in a second amendment, however, that cannot be done until RPA fund balances are certified by Caltrans, which has 
not yet been completed.   

The purpose of this proposed First Amendment is to carry over and reprogram PPM funds as follows: 

W.E.2 (MCOG) Planning Management & General Coordination (Non-RPA) – There is no change to the 
overall total in this work element ($94,999), however, the fiscal year of PPM funds is being revised to utilize 
$9,056 in FY 2017/18 PPM carryover funds (under-expended in FY 2018/19 W.E. 9) which will soon expire on 
6/30/20.  This will free up $9,056 in FY 2019/20 PPM funds, which will be transferred to the Pavement 
Management Program (PMP) Triennial Update RESERVE.  See below. 

W.E. 7 (MCOG) Planning, Programming & Monitoring – A total of $60,520 in carryover PPM funds 
($37,154 – FY 2017/18; $23,366 - FY 2018/19) is being carried over and added to this work element, increasing the 
total from $66,864 to $127,384.   

 W.E. 8 (MCOG) Mendo. Co. Fire Vulnerability Assessment & Emergency Preparedness Grant – The 
funding in this grant project is being reduced by $1,000 to correct an error and match the programmed funding to 
the amount included in the 7/2/19 grant award letter from Caltrans. The local match (LTF) will be revised from 
$32,231 to $31,116 (a decrease of $115) and the grant amount will be revised from $248,749 to 247,884 (a decrease 
of $885).  The total funding will be revised from $281,000 to $280,000.   

Pavement Management Program Triennial Update – RESERVE – A total of $6,508 in FY 2018/19 PPM 
carryover funds is being added to this RESERVE, from under-expended FY 2018/19 Work Elements 10 ($4,659) 
and 18 ($1,849).  In addition, $9,056 in FY 2019/20 PPM funds are being added to this RESERVE, freed up in 
Work Element 2, as noted above.  This project’s total will increase from $50,000 to $65,564.  (Note: The purpose of 
this RESERVE is to start accumulating funding in advance of a project expected to be programmed in the next 
OWP cycle).   

This proposed amendment would increase the FY 2019/20 Overall Work Program total from $989,346 to 
$1,064,430, an increase of $75,084.  Details are shown in bold and strike out on the attached financial summary 
sheets.  Copies of the full amendment will be available upon request.   

The TAC has not considered this proposed Amendment because their next meeting is on 8/21/19, after the 
MCOG meeting.  However, staff considers the amendment routine and no new funding is involved.   
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
ACTION REQUIRED:  Consider approval of First Amendment to FY 2019/20 Overall Work Program.   
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
ALTERNATIVES:  (1) Approve Amendment (Recommended); (2) Do not approve Amendment; or  
(3) Refer Amendment to TAC for review and recommendation.

Agenda # 11 
Consent Calendar 

MCOG Meeting 
8/19/2019























 

With your continued support and approval of the budget augmentation, we propose using the same formula 
that was used to determine Surface Transportation Block Grants (STBG) contributions to the Caltrans’ 
Cooperative Training Assistance Program (CTAP). Specifically, we request that each region send a letter to 
Caltrans by September 1, 2019 authorizing Caltrans to reduce its share of Surface Transportation Block 
Grants (STBG) funding by the specific formula amounts shown in the attached chart as each region’s 
contribution to the effort. 

 

After September 1, 2019, Caltrans will reduce the STBG balance for each Region in accordance with the letter 
to Caltrans. The amounts contributed by regions would then be provided to the County Engineer’s Association 
of California (CEAC) who is responsible for payments on the Report contract. 

 
Attached is a template letter to Ray Zhang at Caltrans Local Assistance that you could use for your request to 
Caltrans. Please copy Marina Espinoza with CSAC on your letter by email (mespinoza@counties.org) or hard 
copy (CSAC, 1100 K Street, Suite 101, Sacramento, CA 95814). 

 

If you would prefer to contribute to this effort with other funds (i.e. Non-STBG funds), please send a check 
payable to “CEAC” directly to Mike Crump, CEAC Treasurer, or contact Chris Lee to discuss alternative options. 

 

Mike Crump 
Retired Director of Public Works – Butte County 
PO Box 478 
Durham CA 95938 

   
Finally, while Executive Directors in many regions have authority to contribute funds to this effort without 
board approval, for those that would like to take this action to their boards, a sample resolution that could 
be used is attached. 

 

Thank you in advance for your consideration of our request. 
 

Contact. If you have any questions regarding this request, or want more information on the history of or 
specific findings from the reports, please contact Rony Berdugo, League Legislative Representative, at 
(916) 658‐8249 or rberdugo@cacities.org, or Chris Lee, CSAC Legislative Representative at (916) 650-8180 
or clee@counties.org. 

 

Attachments 
Proposed RTPA Needs Assessment Funding Contributions 
Sample Needs Assessment Funding Letter to Caltrans 
Sample Resolution 
 
cc: Regional Transportation Planning Agency Group  
 Rural Counties Task Force 

 

 

 

mailto:mespinoza@counties.org
mailto:clee@counties.org












SEC. 11. 

 Chapter 3.1 (commencing with Section 50515) is added to Part 2 of Division 31 of the Health and Safety Code, 
to read: 

CHAPTER  3.1. Local Government Planning Support Grants Program 

50515. 

 For purposes of this chapter: 

(a) “Annual progress report” means the annual report required to be submitted to the department pursuant to 
paragraph (2) of subdivision (a) of Section 65400 of the Government Code. 

(b) “Completed entitlement” means a housing development project that has received all the required land use 
approvals or entitlements necessary for the issuance of a building permit and for which no additional action, 
including environmental review or appeals, is required to be eligible to apply for and obtain a building permit. 

(c) “Council of governments” means a single or multicounty council created by a joint powers agreement 
pursuant to Chapter 5 (commencing with Section 6500) of Division 7 of Title 1 of the Government Code that is 
responsible for allocating regional housing need pursuant to Sections 65584, 65584.04, and 65584.05 of the 
Government Code. 

(d) “Housing element” or “element” means the housing element of a community’s general plan, as required 
pursuant to subdivision (c) of Section 65302 of the Government Code and prepared in accordance with Article 
10.6 (commencing with Section 65580) of Chapter 3 of Division 1 of Title 7 of the Government Code. 

(e) “Jurisdiction” means a city, county, or city and county. 

(f) “Program” means the Local Government Planning Support Grants Program established pursuant to this 
chapter. 

(g) “Regional housing need assessment” means the existing and projected need for housing for each region, as 
determined by the department pursuant to Section 65584.01 of the Government Code. 

50515.01. 

 (a) (1) The Local Government Planning Support Grants Program is hereby established for the purpose of 
providing regions and jurisdictions with one‐time funding, including grants for planning activities to enable 
jurisdictions to meet the sixth cycle of the regional housing need assessment.  

(2) Upon appropriation by the Legislature, two hundred fifty million dollars ($250,000,000) shall be distributed 
under the program in accordance with this chapter, as provided in Sections 50515.02 and 50515.03. 

(b) The department shall administer the program and, consistent with the requirements of this chapter, provide 
grants to regions and jurisdictions for technical assistance, preparation and adoption of planning documents, 
and process improvements to accelerate housing production and facilitate compliance to implement the sixth 
cycle of the regional housing need assessment. 

(c) Of the total amount of any moneys appropriated for purposes of this chapter, the department shall set aside 
up to 5 percent for program administration, including state operations expenditures and technical assistance, as 
well as expenditures by recipients of funding pursuant to Sections 50515.02 and 50515.03.  



50515.02. 

 Of the amount described in paragraph (2) of subdivision (a) of Section 50515.01, one hundred twenty‐five 
million dollars ($125,000,000) shall be available to councils of governments and other regional entities, as 
follows: 

(a) The moneys allocated pursuant to this subdivision shall be available to the following entities: 

(1) The Association of Bay Area Governments, representing the Counties of Alameda, Contra Costa, Marin, Napa, 
San Mateo, Santa Clara, Solano, and Sonoma, and the City and County of San Francisco. 

(2) The Sacramento Area Council of Governments, representing the Counties of El Dorado, Placer, Sacramento, 
Sutter, Yolo, and Yuba. 

(3) The San Diego Association of Governments, representing the County of San Diego. 

(4) The Southern California Association of Governments, representing the Counties of Imperial, Los Angeles, 
Orange, Riverside, San Bernardino, and Ventura. 

(5) A central coast multiagency working group, formed in accordance with subdivision (c), consisting of the 
Association of Monterey Bay Area Governments, the San Luis Obispo Council of Governments, and the Santa 
Barbara County Association of Governments, representing the Counties of Monterey, San Benito, San Luis 
Obispo, Santa Barbara, and Santa Cruz. 

(6) A San Joaquin Valley multiagency working group, formed in accordance with subdivision (c), consisting of the 
Fresno Council of Governments, the Kern Council of Governments, the Kings County Association of 
Governments, the Madera County Transportation Commission, the Merced County Association of Governments, 
the San Joaquin Council of Governments, the Stanislaus Council of Governments, and the Tulare County 
Association of Governments, representing the Counties of Fresno, Kern, Kings, Madera, Merced, San Joaquin, 
Stanislaus, and Tulare. 

(7) Councils of governments from the Counties of Butte, Humboldt, Lake, and Mendocino. Notwithstanding any 
other provision of this chapter, the councils of governments described in this paragraph may apply directly to 
the department for funds pursuant to the program. 

(8) The Counties of Alpine, Amador, Calaveras, Colusa, Del Norte, Glenn, Inyo, Lassen, Mariposa, Modoc, Mono, 
Nevada, Plumas, Shasta, Sierra, Siskiyou, Tehama, Tuolumne, and Trinity. Notwithstanding any other provision 
of this chapter, the counties described in this paragraph may apply directly to the department for funds 
pursuant to the program. The department may approve a fiscal agent to receive funds from the amount 
identified in this section on behalf of a county or consortium of counties listed in this paragraph. 

(b) (1) Except as otherwise provided in paragraphs (7) and (8) of subdivision (a), the department shall make the 
allocations required by this subdivision to each regional entity on behalf all of the jurisdictions represented by 
that entity. The department shall calculate the amount of each allocation in accordance with the population 
estimates consistent with the methodology described in subdivision (a) of Section 50515.03. 

(2) Each council of governments or other regional entity may, in consultation with the department and 
consistent with the requirements of this chapter, determine the appropriate use of funds or suballocations 
within its boundaries to appropriately address its unique housing and planning priorities.  

(c) The following shall apply with respect to any allocation made pursuant to this subdivision to a multiagency 
working group, as described in paragraphs (5) and (6) of subdivision (a): 



(1) Before November 30, 2019, the multiagency working groups described in paragraphs (5) and (6) of 
subdivision (a) shall be formed as follows: 

(A) Each working group shall consist of the following members: 

(i) One representative from each county described in paragraph (5) or (6), as applicable, of subdivision (a). 

(ii) Two city representatives from each county described in paragraph (5) or (6), as applicable, of subdivision (a) 
appointed by the city selection committee for that county. In appointing city representatives, the city selection 
committee shall appoint one representative of a larger city within the county and one representative of a 
smaller city within the county. 

(iii) Of the three representatives from each county serving on the multiagency working group pursuant to 
clauses (i) and (ii), at least one of the representatives shall also be a member of the governing body of the 
applicable council of governments representing the county. 

(B) The multiagency working group shall select a council of governments to serve as the fiscal agent of the 
multiagency working group and identify staff to assist the work of the group. If the multiagency working group 
fails to agree to the selection of a council of governments to serve as fiscal agent pursuant to this clause within a 
reasonable time period, the department shall select a fiscal agent based on factors such as capacity and 
experience in administering grant programs. 

(C) Upon its formation, the multiagency working group shall notify each city and county that is a member of a 
council of governments described in paragraph (5) or (6), as applicable, of subdivision (a) of its purpose pursuant 
to this section. 

(2) In recognition of the unique challenges in developing a process through a multiagency working group, the 
department shall allocate eight million dollars ($8,000,000) of the amount available pursuant to this subdivision 
to the multiagency working groups described in described in paragraphs (5) and (6) of subdivision (a), as follows: 

(A) Twenty‐five percent of the amount subject to this subparagraph shall be allocated to the central coast 
multiagency working group described in paragraph (5) of subdivision (a). 

(B) Seventy‐five percent of the amount subject to this subparagraph shall be allocated to the San Joaquin Valley 
multiagency working group described in paragraph (6) of subdivision (a).  

(d) (1) Until January 31, 2021, a council of governments or other regional entity described in subdivision (a), or 
a county described in paragraph (8) of subdivision (a), may request an allocation of funds pursuant to this 
section by submitting an application, in the form and manner prescribed by the department, that includes the 
following information: 

(A) An allocation budget for the funds provided pursuant to this section. 

(B) The amounts retained by the council of governments, regional entity, or county, and any suballocations to 
jurisdictions. 

(C) An explanation of how proposed uses will increase housing planning and facilitate local housing production. 

(D) Identification of current best practices at the regional and statewide level that promote sufficient supply of 
housing affordable to all income levels, and a strategy for increasing adoption of these practices at the regional 
level, where viable. 

(E) An education and outreach strategy to inform local agencies of the need and benefits of taking early action 
related to the sixth cycle regional needs allocation. 



(2) The department shall review an application submitted pursuant to this subdivision within 30 days. Upon 
approval of an application for funds pursuant to this subdivision, the department shall award the moneys for 
which the council of governments, other regional entity, or county, as applicable, qualifies.  

(e) A council of governments, other regional entity, or county that receives an allocation of funds pursuant to 
this section shall establish priorities and use those moneys to increase housing planning and accelerate housing 
production, as follows: 

(1) Developing an improved methodology for the distribution of the sixth cycle regional housing need 
assessment to further the objectives described in subdivision (d) of Section 65584 of the Government Code.  

(2) Suballocating moneys directly and equitably to jurisdictions or other subregional entities in the form of 
grants, to be used in accordance with subdivision (f), for planning that will accommodate the development of 
housing and infrastructure that will accelerate housing production in a way that aligns with state planning 
priorities, housing, transportation, equity, and climate goals. 

(3) Providing jurisdictions and other local agencies with technical assistance, planning, temporary staffing or 
consultant needs associated with updating local planning and zoning documents, expediting application 
processing, and other actions to accelerate additional housing production. 

(4) Covering the costs of administering any programs described in this subdivision. 

(f) An entity that receives a suballocation of funds pursuant to paragraph (2) of subdivision (e) shall only use that 
suballocation for housing‐related planning activities, including, but not limited to, the following: 

(1) Technical assistance in improving housing permitting processes, tracking systems, and planning tools. 

(2) Establishing regional or countywide housing trust funds for affordable housing. 

(3) Performing infrastructure planning, including for sewers, water systems, transit, roads, or other public 
facilities necessary to support new housing and new residents. 

(4) Performing feasibility studies to determine the most efficient locations to site housing consistent with 
Sections 65041.1 and 65080 of the Government Code. 

(5) Covering the costs of temporary staffing or consultant needs associated with the activities described in 
paragraphs (1) to (4), inclusive. 

50515.03. 

 Of the amount described in paragraph (2) of subdivision (a) of Section 50515.01, one hundred twenty‐five 
million dollars ($125,000,000) shall be available to jurisdictions to assist in planning for other activities related to 
meeting the sixth cycle regional housing need assessment, as follows:  

(a) (1) The maximum amount that a jurisdiction may receive pursuant to this subdivision shall be as follows: 

(A) If the jurisdiction has a population of 750,000 or greater, one million five hundred thousand dollars 
($1,500,000). 

(B) If the jurisdiction has a population of 300,000 or greater, but equal to or less than 749,999, seven hundred 
fifty thousand dollars ($750,000). 

(C) If the jurisdiction has a population of 100,000 or greater, but equal to or less than 299,999, five hundred 
thousand dollars ($500,000). 



(D) If the jurisdiction has a population of 60,000 or greater, but equal to or less than 99,999, three hundred 
thousand dollars ($300,000). 

(E) If the jurisdiction has a population of 20,000 or greater, but equal to or less than 59,999, one hundred fifty 
thousand dollars ($150,000). 

(F) If the jurisdiction has a population equal to or less than 19,999, sixty‐five thousand dollars ($65,000). 

(2) For purposes of this subdivision, the population of a jurisdiction shall be based on the population estimates 
posted on the Department of Finance’s internet website as of January 1, 2019.  

(b) (1) Until July 1, 2020, a jurisdiction may request an allocation of funds pursuant to this section by submitting 
an application to the department, in the form and manner prescribed by the department, that contains the 
following information: 

(A) An allocation budget for the funds provided pursuant to this section. 

(B) An explanation of how proposed uses will increase housing planning and facilitate local housing production. 

(2) The department shall review an application submitted pursuant to this subdivision within 30 days. Upon 
approval of an application for funds pursuant to this subdivision, the department shall award the moneys for 
which the jurisdiction qualifies.  

(c) A jurisdiction that receives an allocation pursuant to this section shall only use that allocation for housing‐
related planning activities, including, but not limited to, the following: 

(1) Rezoning and encouraging development by updating planning documents and zoning ordinances, such as 
general plans, community plans, specific plans, sustainable communities’ strategies, and local coastal programs. 

(2) Completing environmental clearance to eliminate the need for project‐specific review. 

(3) Establishing a workforce housing opportunity zone pursuant to Article 10.10 (commencing with Section 
65620) of Chapter 3 of Division 1 of Title 7 of the Government Code or a housing sustainability district pursuant 
to Chapter 11 (commencing with Section 66200) of Division 1 of Title 7 of the Government Code. 

(4) Performing infrastructure planning, including for sewers, water systems, transit, roads, or other public 
facilities necessary to support new housing and new residents. 

(5) Partnering with other local entities to identify and prepare excess property for residential development. 

(6) Revamping local planning processes to speed up housing production. 

(7) Developing or improving an accessory dwelling unit ordinance in compliance with Section 65852.2 of the 
Government Code.  

(8) Covering the costs of temporary staffing or consultant needs associated with the activities described in 
paragraphs (1) to (7), inclusive. 

50515.04. 

 (a) (1) Subject to paragraph (2), a council of governments, other regional entity, or jurisdiction, as applicable, 
that receives an allocation of program funds pursuant to Section 50515.02 or 50515.03 shall submit a report, in 
the form and manner prescribed by the department, to be made publicly available on its internet website, by 



April 1 of the year following the receipt of those funds, and annually thereafter until those funds are expended, 
that contains the following information: 

(A) The status of the proposed uses listed in the entity’s application for funding and the corresponding impact on 
housing within the region or jurisdiction, as applicable, categorized based on the eligible uses specified in 
Section 50515.02 or 50515.03, as applicable. 

(B) A summary of building permits, certificates of occupancy, or other completed entitlements issued by entities 
within the region or by the jurisdiction, as applicable. 

(2) A city or county that receives program funds shall, in lieu of providing a separate annual report pursuant to 
this subdivision, provide the information required by paragraph (1) as part of its annual progress report. 

(b) (1) The department shall maintain records of the following and provide that information publicly on its 
internet website: 

(A) The name of each applicant for program funds and the status of that entity’s application. 

(B) The number of applications for program funding received by the department. 

(C) The information described in subdivision (a) for each recipient of program funds. 

(2) The department may request additional information, as needed, to meet other applicable reporting or audit 
requirements.  

(c) (1) Each recipient of funds under the program shall expend those funds no later than December 31, 2023. 

(2) No later than December 31, 2024, each council of governments, other regional entity, or county that receives 
an allocation of funds pursuant to Section 50515.02 shall submit a final report on the use of those funds to the 
department. The report required by this paragraph shall include an evaluation of jurisdiction actions taken in 
support of the entity’s proposed uses of those funds, as specified in the entity’s application, including which 
actions had greatest impact on housing production.  

(d) The department may monitor expenditures and activities of an applicant, as the department deems 
necessary, to ensure compliance with program requirements.  

(e) The department may, as it deems appropriate or necessary, request the repayment of funds from an 
applicant, or pursue any other remedies available to it by law for failure to comply with program requirements.  

(f) The department may implement the program through the issuance of forms, guidelines, and one or more 
notices of funding availability, as the department deems necessary, to exercise the powers and perform the 
duties conferred on it by this chapter. Any forms, guidelines, and notices of funding availability adopted 
pursuant to this section are hereby exempted from the rulemaking provisions of the Administrative Procedure 
Act (Chapter 3.5 (commencing with Section 11340) of Part 1 of Division 3 of Title 2 of the Government Code).  

(g) The department’s decision to approve or deny an application or request for funding pursuant to the program, 
and its determination of the amount of funding to be provided, shall be final.  

50515.05. 

 (a) It is the intent of the Legislature to revamp the existing regional housing need allocation process described in 
Sections 65584 to 65584.2, inclusive, of the Government Code in order to accomplish the following objectives: 

(1) Create a fair, transparent, and objective process for identifying housing needs across the state. 



(2) Strategically plan for housing growth according to statewide priorities, consistent with Section 65041.1 of the 
Government Code, and expected future need for housing at all income levels. 

(3) Encourage increased development to address the state’s housing affordability issues. 

(4) Improve compliance and outcomes through incentives and enforcement. 

(b) (1) By December 31, 2022, the department, in collaboration with the Office of Planning and Research and 
after engaging in stakeholder participation, shall develop a recommended improved regional housing need 
allocation process and methodology that promotes and streamlines housing development and substantially 
addresses California’s housing shortage.  

(2) In developing the recommendations required by this subdivision, the department may appoint a third‐party 
consultant to facilitate a comprehensive review of the current regional housing need allocation process and 
methodology.  

(c) Upon completion of the process described in subdivision (b), the department shall submit a report of its 
findings and recommendations to the Legislature. The report required to be submitted pursuant to this 
subdivision shall be submitted in compliance with Section 9795 of the Government Code. 

 


	#06d 201907-sgr-formal-draft-guidelines-a11y.pdf
	California Department of Transportation
	2019
	State of Good Repair Program Guidelines
	Formal Draft Update
	May 2019


	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page



